
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

GONZALES MUNICIPAL BUILDING   820 ST. JOSEPH STREET 
VIA TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 

AGENDA –APRIL 9, 2020   6:00 P.M. 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that, pursuant to Section 551.045 of the Texas Government Code and the March 
16, 2020 order by the Governor of the State of Texas, the City Council will hold its regular meeting on 
Thursday, April 9, 2020 at 6:00 p.m., via teleconference in accordance with Governor Abbott’s order. 
 
This meeting notice, agenda and agenda packet are posted online at www.gonzales.texas.gov. 
 
On March 16, 2020, Governor Abbott suspended several provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act for the 
duration of his statewide declaration of disaster, including the new requirement (added by H.B. 2840 last 
legislative session) that the public has a right to speak on agenda items. This DOES NOT apply to 
statutorily-mandated public hearings, such as zoning and similar hearings.  
 
This meeting will be closed to in person attendance by the public. A temporary suspension of certain 
provisions of the Open Meetings Act to allow telephone or videoconference public meetings has been 
granted by Governor Greg Abbott. These actions are being taken to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by 
avoiding meetings that bring people into a group setting and in accordance with Section 418.016 of the 
Texas Government Code. 
 
The public toll-free dial in number to participate in the telephone conference is hosted through 
FreeConferenceCall.com. 
 
Toll-free call in number: 1-844-854-2222 
When asked for an access code enter 348787# 
It is not necessary to announce yourself when you join the teleconference. 
 
A recording of the telephone conference will be made, and will be available to the public in accordance 
with the Open Meetings Act upon written request. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE    
  
CITY EVENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 • Announcements of upcoming City Events   
 • Announcements and recognitions by the City Manager   
 • Announcements and recognitions by the Mayor 
 • Recognition of actions by City employees  
 • Recognition of actions by community volunteers 
 
HEARING OF RESIDENTS 
Temporarily suspended as noted above. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 

1.1 Fair Housing Month 
 

1.2 National Sexual Assault Awareness and Prevention Month 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 1 of 250

http://www.gonzales.texas.gov/


PRESENTATIONS 
2.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-35 Acknowledging Receipt and 

Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ending 
September 30, 2019. 

   
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
The Consent Agenda is considered self-explanatory and will be enacted by the Council with one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless they are removed from the Consent Agenda upon 
the request of the Mayor or a Councilmember.   
   

3.1  Minutes - Approval of the minutes for the Regular Meeting of March 12, 2020, Special Called 
Meeting on March 16, 2020 and Emergency Meeting on March 20, 2020. 

 
3.2  Absences-Approval of any council absences for the second quarter of fiscal year 2019-20. 
 
3.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-36 Declaring Certain City Property 

Surplus and Authorizing the Sale and/or Donation of Said Property in the manner most 
advantageous to the City of Gonzales. 

 
3.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-37 Affirming the City of Gonzales 

does not Discriminate in the Provision of any Program Based on the Race, Color, National 
Origin, Age, Religion, Gender, Handicap Status, Veteran Status or Any Other Protected Status. 

 
3.5 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-38 Authorizing Designated 

Signators for Contractual and Financial Documents for the Texas General Land Office 
Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery Program.  

 
RESOLUTIONS  

4.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action Approving Resolution #2020-39 Accepting the Proposals 
and Awarding the Contract for the roof replacement and repairs at Gonzales Memorial Museum 
and Amphitheatre to RYCARS Construction. 

 
4.2 Conduct second reading of a resolution and action on a resolution authorizing certain financial 

assistance up to $500,000.00 by the GEDC to be used as a line of credit or other financial 
assistance for businesses located within the City of Gonzales, Texas. 

 
4.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on the GEDC’s action to extend all existing loan 

payments for 90 days and waiving late fees due to COVID-19. 
 
4.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action Approving Resolution #2020-40 Appointing a Board 

Member to the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation.  
 
4.5 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-41 Denying Texas Gas Service 

Company’s Requested Rate Increase. 
 
ORDINANCES 

5.1 Discuss, Consider and Possible Action on Ordinance #2020-09 Authorizing Budget 
Amendments for the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year 

 
5.2 Discussion and possible action on an ordinance amending and possibly extending the public 

health emergency declaration regarding precautionary measures in reference to the COVID-19 
virus.   

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 2 of 250



 
STAFF/BOARD REPORTS 

6.1 Financial Report for the Month of March 2020 
 
6.2 City Manager, Tim Patek will update the City Council on the following: Jim Price Clean-Up, 

Tank #2 Rehab at Water Plant 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
7.1 (a) Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales will consult 

in closed session with its attorney to receive legal advice regarding pending or contemplated 
litigation, a settlement offer, or matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas 
clearly conflicts with this chapter”, to include the following matters:  

 
1. In Re Estate of J. B. Wells litigation 
2. Patricia Bennett and Gloria Knight v. City of Gonzales, Texas Cause No. 27,500 
3. A Guerra Enterprise LLC D/B/A Holiday Inn Express & Suites Cause No. 27,591 

 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

8.1 Discuss and Consider any Action Resulting from Closed Session as Necessary  
 
CITY COUNCIL REQUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 • Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers for items on a future City Council agenda 
 • Announcements by Mayor and Councilmembers  
 • City and community events attended and to be attended  
 • Continuing education events attended and to be attended  
  
ADJOURN 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the above items in Executive Closed 
Session if they meet the qualifications in Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.073, 551.074, 551.076, 551.087, of Chapter 
551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas. 
 
CERTIFIED as posted by 3:45 p.m. on March 25, 2020.  I further certify that the following News Media were 
properly notified of the above stated meeting:  Gonzales Inquirer. 

 
_Kristi Gilbert____________________ 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary  
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 3 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 4 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 5 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-35 Acknowledging Receipt 
and Presentation of the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ending 
September 30, 2019 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City’s Auditor Jon Watson from BrooksWatson & Co., PLLC has completed the annual 
audit for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019.  The Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report is presented to Council after the completion of the audit of all City of Gonzales Funds.   
     
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with what has been done in the past. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of receipt and completion of Financial Audit of Records. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 6 of 250



 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-35 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT AND PRESENTATION OF THE COMPREHENSIVE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 
2019; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Section 103.001 states that a municipality shall 
have its records audited annually and shall have an annual financial statement prepared based 
on the audit; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Auditor Jon Watson from BrooksWatson & Co., PLLC has completed 
the annual audit for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented to Council after the 
completion of audit of all City of Gonzales Funds; and 

WHEREAS, the annual financial statement including the auditor’s opinion on the statement, 
shall be filed in the office of the municipal secretary or clerk within 180 days after the last day 
of the municipality’s fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby acknowledges receipt of the comprehensive annual 
financial report for fiscal year ending September 30, 2019; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 2. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby acknowledges the receipt 
and presentation of the comprehensive annual financial report for fiscal year ending September 
30, 2019. 
 
Section 3. That it is officially found, determined and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall not be construed to require or allow any act which is 
prohibited by an Ordinance.   

 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 7 of 250



 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, 
Texas, on this 9th day of April 2020.  
 
 
       CITY OF GONZALES 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 

 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 8 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 9 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 10 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 11 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 12 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 13 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 14 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 15 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 16 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 17 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 18 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 19 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 20 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 21 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 22 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 23 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 24 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 25 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 26 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 27 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 28 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 29 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 30 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 31 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 32 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 33 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 34 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 35 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 36 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 37 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 38 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 39 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 40 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 41 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 42 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 43 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 44 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 45 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 46 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 47 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 48 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 49 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 50 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 51 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 52 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 53 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 54 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 55 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 56 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 57 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 58 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 59 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 60 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 61 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 62 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 63 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 64 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 65 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 66 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 67 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 68 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 69 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 70 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 71 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 72 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 73 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 74 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 75 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 76 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 77 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 78 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 79 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 80 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 81 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 82 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 83 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 84 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 85 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 86 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 87 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 88 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 89 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 90 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 91 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 92 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 93 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 94 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 95 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 96 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 97 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 98 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 99 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 100 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 101 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 102 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 103 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 104 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 105 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 106 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 107 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 108 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 109 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 110 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 111 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 112 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 113 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 114 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 115 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 116 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 117 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 118 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 119 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 120 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 121 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 122 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 123 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 124 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 125 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 126 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 127 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 128 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 129 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 130 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 131 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 132 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 133 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 134 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 135 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 136 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 137 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 138 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 139 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 140 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 141 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 142 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 143 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 144 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 145 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 146 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 147 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 148 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 149 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 150 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 151 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 152 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 153 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 154 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 155 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 156 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 157 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 158 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 159 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 160 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 161 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 162 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 163 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 164 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 165 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 166 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 167 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 168 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 169 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 170 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 171 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 172 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 173 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 174 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 175 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 176 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 177 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 178 of 250



  
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA –MARCH 12, 2020    

 

 

March 12, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 1 of 6 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council was held on March 12, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Gonzales Municipal Building, 820 St. Joseph Street.  This was an OPEN MEETING, open to the 
public, subject to the open meeting laws of the State of Texas and, as required by law, was duly 
posted, at the Gonzales Municipal Building, giving notice of time, date, place, and agenda 
thereof. 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE  

Mayor Kacir called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. and certified a quorum. 

 
STAFF PRESENT: 
City Manager Tim Patek, City Attorney Dan Santee, Interim City Secretary Kristi Gilbert, 
Finance Director Laura Zella, Tourism Director Ashley Simper, Captain Gayle Autry, Parks and 
Recreation Director Anne Dollery, Street Supervisor Todd Remschel, City Engineer Keith 
Schauer 
 
CITY EVENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 • Announcements of upcoming City Events   
 • Announcements and recognitions by the City Manager   
 • Announcements and recognitions by the Mayor: 

o Next Q&A with the Mayor will be on Tuesday, March 17th at 10am at the library 
and will be sponsored by local motels. 

o Commend the Tourism Director, the Convention and Visitor Bureau, Historical 
Commission and Ms. Crozier for working with the young Texians for Texas 
Independence Week.  

o The quarterly meeting with business owners will be in April in conjunction with 
the Chamber of Commerce and Tourism Director on upcoming events. 

o First Airport Advisory Board meeting was conducted on Monday, March 9th 
 • Recognition of actions by City employees  
 • Recognition of actions by community volunteers 
 
HEARING OF RESIDENTS 
This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each person should 
fill out the speaker’s register prior to the meeting. Presentations should be limited to no more 
than 3 minutes. 
 
The following individuals made a presentation to the City Council: 
 

Attendee Name Title Status 
Connie L. Kacir Mayor Present 
Gary Schroeder Council Member, District 1 Present 
Tommy Schurig Council Member, District 2 Present 
Bobby O’Neal Council Member, District 3 Present 
Dan Blakemore Mayor Pro Tem/Council Member, District 4 Present 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 179 of 250



 

March 12, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 2 of 6 

 

Lori Steindorf introduced herself as the new reporter for the Gonzales Inquirer and 
introduced herself to the City Council. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
1.1 Mayor Kacir administered the Oath of Office to Officer Jason Hinds. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
2.1 Minutes - Approval of the minutes for the Regular Meeting of February 13, 2020 and the 

Q&A with the Mayor of February 11, 2020. 
 
2.2 Absences-Approval of any council absences for the first quarter of fiscal year 2019-20 
 
2.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-27 Authorizing the City 

Manager to Execute an Agreement with Gonzales Inquirer for the Street Closures, 
Consumption of Alcohol on Public Property and the Recommendation for Funding from 
the Gonzales Convention and Visitor Bureau in the amount of $5,000.00 for the Come 
and Taste It on April 24-25, 2020 

 
2.4 Discuss, Consider and Possible Action on Resolution #2020-28 Authorizing the 

Gonzales Convention and Visitors Bureau to provide funding assistance for the purchase 
of a new stage that will be owned by the City of Gonzales and utilized by all 
departments; and specifically, Main Street 

 
ACTION:  Item 2.1 through 2.2       APPROVED 
Mayor Kacir stated she was pulling Items 2.3 and 2.4 for further discussion. 
 
Councilmember O’Neal moved to approve the consent agenda Items 2.1 and 2.2 as presented. 
Mayor Pro Tem Blakemore seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  
Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  
 
ACTION:  Item 2.3         APPROVED 
Mayor Kacir stated she asked Mr. Fitzwater to add to the agreement notification of downtown 
business owners affected by the street closures and the closure of the square.  Mr. Fitzwater 
agreed. Mayor Pro Tem Blakemore moved to approve the Resolution 2020-27 as amended. 
Councilmember Schurig seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  
Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  
 
Mayor stated there was a savings of $63,250 by sending the item back to Convention and 
Visitors Bureau for consideration of funding and obtain additional bids. 
 
ACTION:  Item 2.4         APPROVED 
Councilmember Schurig moved to approve the Resolution 2020-28 as present. Councilmember 
Schroeder seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The 
motion passed 5 to 0.  
 
RESOLUTIONS  

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 180 of 250



 

March 12, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 3 of 6 

 

3.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-29 Accepting the Proposals 
and Awarding the Contract for the Country Village Electric System Replacement Project 
to Greenstone Electrical Services, LLC.  

 
 Mayor Kacir stated City Engineer Keith Schauer recommended awarding the contract to 

Greenstone Electrical Services, LLC.   
 
  ACTION:  Item 3.1        APPROVED 

Councilmember Schurig moved to approve Resolution #2020-29 as presented. 
Councilmember Schroeder seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  
For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  
 

3.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-30 Accepting the Proposals 
and Awarding the Contract for the 2020 Street Improvement Plans to Tierra Lease 
Service, LLC. 

 
 Mayor Kacir stated the project is for the rehabilitation of Larry Drive and portions of 

Independence Park Road, as well as the road next to the city swimming pool. 
 
  ACTION:  Item 3.2        APPROVED 

Councilmember O’Neal moved to approve Resolution #2020-30 as presented. Mayor Pro 
Tem Blakemore seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  
Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  
 

3.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action Approving Resolution #2020-31 Authorizing the 
City Manager to Execute a License Agreement with Texas Lou’s Canoes Incorporated 
Granting them the use of Independence Park for a Concession Site for the Rental of Non-
Motorized Watercraft, Sales of Fishing Bait and Sales of Business Industry Related 
Accessories. 

 
 Mayor stated she was proud to have Lou’s Canoes in the City of Gonzales. 
 
  ACTION:  Item 3.3        APPROVED 

Councilmember O’Neal moved to approve Resolution #2020-31 as presented. 
Councilmember Schurig seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  
For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  
 

3.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action Approving Resolution #2020-32 Appointing a 
Board Member to the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation. 

 
  ACTION:  Item 3.4       APPOINTMENT 

Councilmember Schurig moved to approve Resolution #2020-32 appointed Meena Patel 
to the vacant position. Councilmember Schroeder seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir 
called for a roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 181 of 250



 

March 12, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 4 of 6 

 

3.5 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action Approving Resolution #2020-33 Approving the 
Creation of Job Descriptions, Amending Position Classification and Amending the 
Annual Budget Personnel Request Summary to include a Part Time Hydro Plant Station 
Technician. 

 
  ACTION:  Item 3.5        APPROVED 

Councilmember O’Neal moved to approve Resolution #2020-33 with the request that 
contract labor also be considered. Mayor Pro Tem Blakemore seconded the motion.  
Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  

 
3.6 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2020-34 Authorizing the 

Appointment of the Election Judge and Workers for the May 2, 2020 General Election.  
Interim City Secretary Kristi Gilbert stated an amended version of the resolution had 
been provided, but no new names, outside of employees, had been added. 
 

  ACTION:  Item 3.6        APPROVED 
Councilmember Blakemore moved to approve Resolution #2020-34 as amended. 
Councilmember O’Neal seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  
For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  

 
ORDINANCES: 
 
4.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Ordinance #2020-06 Amending Chapter 6, 

Health and Sanitation, Article 6.100 Garbage and Trash. 
 

ACTION:  Item 4.1        NO ACTION 
City Attorney Dan Santee stated Frontier Waste did not provide any amendments, so no 
action was needed. 
 

STAFF/BOARD REPORTS:  
5.1 Financial Report for the Month of February 2020 
 Mayor Kacir stated the decrease in fund balance was due to payment on Certificates of 

Obligation in February. 
 
5.2 City Manager, Tim Patek updated the City Council on the Community Development 

Block Grant in the amount of $852,000 stating that meetings had been conducted and 
items for Council approval are forthcoming with a completion date of April 2022.  Mr. 
Patek stated demolition of the old library had been awarded to Fred’s Contract Services, 
LLC and will start demolition on March 31st after utilities are all disconnected, and air 
conditioning units are removed.  The expected timeframe for demolition is set at three 
weeks. 
 

CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION:  
The Council convened into executive session at 6:32 pm. 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 182 of 250



 

March 12, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 5 of 6 

 

PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, ANNOTATED, CHAPTER 551,                                                                                
SUBCHAPTER D: 
6.1 (a) Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales 

will consult in closed session with its attorney to receive legal advice regarding 
pending or contemplated litigation, a settlement offer, or matter in which the duty 
of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of 
Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with this 
chapter”, to include the following matters:  

1. In Re Estate of J. B. Wells litigation 
2. Patricia Bennett and Gloria Knight v. City of Gonzales, Texas Cause No. 

27,500 
3. A Guerra Enterprise LLC D/B/A Holiday Inn Express & Suites Cause No. 

27,591 
4. Unopened City Streets:  H.C. Schmidt and Michael Tuch 

 
(b) Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales 

will meet in closed session to deliberate the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee.  

1. Economic Development Corporation Board Member(s) 
 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
Reconvene into Open Meeting at 6:58 pm. 
 
7.1 Discuss and Consider any Action Resulting from Closed Session as Necessary 
  

ACTION:  Item 7.1      POLICY REQUESTED 
Councilmember O’Neal moved to direct the City Attorney to prepare a policy for license 
agreements on unopened streets. Councilmember Schroeder seconded the motion.  Mayor 
Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  

 
7.2 Discussion and Direction on future consideration and adoption of an ordinance regarding 

vexatious requestors pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act. 
 
 City Attorney Dan Santee explained the provisions regarding vexatious requestors.  

Discussion was held with regard to the City Attorney bringing back an ordinance. 
 

ACTION:  Item 7.2        NO ACTION 
  No action was taken as a result of closed session. 

 
CITY COUNCIL REQUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
RECEIVE REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL MEMBERS/STAFF FOR ITEMS TO BE 
PLACED ON NEXT MEETING AGENDA (discussion under this item must be limited to 
whether or not the Council wishes to include a potential agenda item on a future agenda)  
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 183 of 250



 

March 12, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 6 of 6 

 

• Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers for items on a future City Council agenda 
The Mayor Update and presentation on oil and gas leases, staff confer with Jeff Moore, 

EDC Attorney for comparison of an EDC and an MDD 
 • Announcements by Mayor and Councilmembers  
 • City and community events attended and to be attended  
 • Continuing education events attended and to be attended  

Mayor Pro Tem Blakemore asked to be kept apprised of any action needed as far as event 
cancellation or closures. 

 
ADJOURN 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 

 
Approved this 9th day of April 2020. 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 184 of 250



  
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA –MARCH 16, 2020    

 

 

March 16, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 1 of 2 

The Special Meeting of the City Council was held on March 16, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. at the 
Gonzales Municipal Building, 820 St. Joseph Street.  This was an OPEN MEETING, open to the 
public, subject to the open meeting laws of the State of Texas and, as required by law, was duly 
posted, at the Gonzales Municipal Building, giving notice of time, date, place, and agenda 
thereof. 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE  

Mayor Kacir called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. and certified a quorum. 

 
STAFF PRESENT: 
City Manager Tim Patek and Finance Director Laura Zella 
 
HEARING OF RESIDENTS 
This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each person should 
fill out the speaker’s register prior to the meeting. Presentations should be limited to no more 
than 3 minutes. 
 
No residents spoke. 
 
 
1. Discussion and possible action on an ordinance extending a public health emergency 

declaration regarding precautionary measures in reference to the COVID-19 virus. 
 

Mayor Kacir reviewed the emergency order that was posted on Friday evening that has to be 
modified or extended upon approval of the City Council.  Mayor Kacir stated the emergency 
declaration was issued after consulting with multiple officials based on the fatality rate of the 
COVID-19 virus. 
 
Dr. Hisey, Chief of Staff of Gonzales Memorial Hospital, explained the COVID-19 virus 
including transmission.  Dr. Hisey discussed and answered Council questions. 
 
Jimmy Harless, Emergency Management Coordinator for Gonzales County and the City of 
Gonzales, addressed the City Council and stated he was in contact with the state on a daily 
basis.  Mr. Harless briefed the Council on the mitigation measures that are in place. 
 
Discussion was held with regard to the definition of mass gatherings, social distancing and 
excepting places of worship from mass gatherings. 

Attendee Name Title Status 
Connie L. Kacir Mayor Present 
Gary Schroeder Council Member, District 1 Present 
Tommy Schurig Council Member, District 2 Present 
Bobby O’Neal Council Member, District 3 Present 
Dan Blakemore Mayor Pro Tem/Council Member, District 4 Present 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 185 of 250



 

March 16, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 2 of 2 

 

Mayor Kacir called for a recess at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Mayor Kacir reconvened the meeting at 6:56 p.m. 

 
ACTION:  Item 1     EMERGENCY DECLARATION 
Mayor Pro Tem Blakemore moved to reinstate the current emergency declaration extending 
it to April 9, 2020 with the modification of limiting mass gatherings to 50 and add Exhibit 1 
as discussed with the exception in Number 4 to strike the school district and allow places of 
worship with social distancing as recommended by the CDC and all other items of Number 4 
to be adopted.  Councilmember Schroeder seconded.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  
For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0. 

 
ADJOURN 
Councilmember Schroeder moved to adjourn the meeting.  Councilmember O’Neal seconded the 
motion.  For:  Unanimous.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 

 
Approved this 9th day of April 2020. 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 186 of 250



  
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 

EMERGENCY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA –MARCH 16, 2020    

 

 

March 16, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 1 of 3 

The Emergency Meeting of the City Council was held on March 20, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. via 
teleconference pursuant to Section 551.045 of the Texas Government Code and in accordance with 
the March 16, 2020 order by the Governor of the State of Texas. 
 
An urgent public necessity exists requiring immediate action of the City Council due to 
an imminent threat to public health and safety arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
The meeting notice, agenda and agenda packet were posted online at www.gonzales.texas.gov. 
 
The public was offered a toll-free dial in number to participate in the telephone conference hosted through 
FreeConferenceCall.com. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND INVOCATION  
Mayor Kacir called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m. and certified a quorum. 

 
STAFF PRESENT: 
City Manager Tim Patek, Interim City Secretary Kristi Gilbert and Finance Director Laura Zella 
 
HEARING OF RESIDENTS 
This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each person should 
fill out the speaker’s register prior to the meeting. Presentations should be limited to no more 
than 3 minutes. 
 
Mayor Kacir stated the Council would consider Item 2. related to the postponement of the 
general election first. 
 
The following individuals made a presentation to the City Council: 
 

Reed Means with the Long Branch Saloon stated that instituting an immediate closure of 
restaurants this evening it will drastically affect businesses that were planning to be open 
tonight. 
 

2. Discussion and possible action on an ordinance postponing the May 2, 2020 General 
Election to November 3, 2020 for the protection of the health and safety of the general 
public. 
 
Mayor Kacir stated the purpose of the item was based on an executive order issued by the 
Governor.  The Mayor stated concerns included some election workers are in a higher 

Attendee Name Title Status 
Connie L. Kacir Mayor Present via phone 
Gary Schroeder Council Member, District 1 Present via phone 
Tommy Schurig Council Member, District 2 Present in person 
Bobby O’Neal Council Member, District 3 Present in person 
Dan Blakemore Mayor Pro Tem/Council Member, District 4 Present via phone 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 187 of 250

http://www.gonzales.texas.gov/


 

March 20, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 2 of 3 

 

risk category, sanitization of election equipment may be difficult, managing the numbers 
and distancing of voters may be difficult, the  campaigning would be difficult as door-to-
door visits or rallies would be limited. 
 
Councilmember Schroeder inquired as to the continued placement of political signs and 
allowing for an extension of political sign placement.  The Mayor advised this item was 
to consider the emergency postponement only. 
 
 
ACTION:  Item 2      POSTPONE ELECTION 
Councilmember Schurig moved to adopt an ordinance postponing the May 2, 2020 
General Election to November 3, 2020 for the protection of the health and safety of the 
general public. Councilmember Schroeder seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for 
a roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0.  
 
 

1. Discussion and possible action on an ordinance extending a public health emergency 
declaration regarding precautionary measures in reference to the COVID-19 virus. 

 
Mayor Kacir clarified the original public health declaration and the emergency 
declaration the Council adopted on March 16, 2020 included language that automatically 
included amendments based on the Center for Disease Control (CDC) recommendations.  
Mayor Kacir stated the City was already limited to no more than 10 individuals in an area 
based on the CDC recommendation issued earlier in the week. 
 
Mayor Kacir stated enforcement action had been taken on one business earlier in the day.  
Council held discussion with regard to timing of limiting the 10 individuals and the 
closure of restaurants.   
 
Councilmember Schroeder stated he felt businesses should be allowed to have up to 50 
people in a building until 11:59pm this evening. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Blakemore stated, since the ordinance had already been enforced at 10 
individuals, the City should be consistent and keep it at a maximum of 10.  
Councilmembers O’Neal and Schurig concurred with Mayor Pro Tem Blakemore. 
 
 
ACTION:  Item 1     EMERGENCY DECLARATION 
Mayor Pro Tem Blakemore moved to leave the emergency declaration the same. 
Councilmember Schurig seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  
For:  Blakemore, Schurig, O’Neal and Kacir.  Against: Schroeder.  The motion passed 4 
to 1.  

 
ADJOURN 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:59 p.m. 

 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 188 of 250



 

March 20, 2020 Council Minutes  Page 3 of 3 

 

Approved this 9th day of April 2020. 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 189 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Absences-Approval of any council absences 
for the second quarter of fiscal year 2019-20   

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Consent  
 

BACKGROUND: 
Section 3.02 of the City of Gonzales Charter states that if the mayor or any councilmember shall 
be absent from three consecutive regularly scheduled meetings, special meetings or council 
workshop meetings without valid excuse, the city council must at its next regular meeting 
declare a vacancy to exist and shall fill said vacancy as set forth in Section 3.06 of this charter. 
 
The Charter is not specific as to what constitutes a valid excuse. Only the City Council as a body 
may judge the validity of an absence by a member of the City Council. As such, absences will be 
brought for the City Council as a consent agenda item along with the reason provided for the 
absence, and a presumption that the absence is excused. Council may remove the item from 
consent for further discussion, debate and individual consideration of an absence if deemed 
merited. In the absence of such, the absence will be deemed excused upon approval of the 
consent agenda. 
 
Below are the meetings conducted in the second quarter of fiscal year 2019-20. 
 
Regular Meeting – January 9, 2020 –  no absences  
Called Meeting – January 23, 2020 –  Bobby O’Neal (working out of town) 
Regular Meeting – February 13, 2020 – no absences 
Regular Meeting – March 12, 2020 – no absences  
Called Meeting – March 16, 2020 – no absences 
Emergency Meeting – March 20, 2020 – no absences 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
N/A  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the council take the action they deem necessary.   

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 190 of 250

https://z2.franklinlegal.net/franklin/DocViewer.jsp?doccode=z20000002&z2collection=gonzales#JD_Charter,%203.06


     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-36 Declaring Certain City 
Property Surplus and Authorizing the Sale 
and/or Donation of Said Property in the 
manner most advantageous to the City of 
Gonzales 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Consent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2013 the Council approved a policy whereby the Council would declare property that staff 
determined to be of no further use to the City to be surplus.  The policy also states that Council 
will recommend the disposal method of the property.   
 
The attached properties listed have been determined to no longer have a use for the City of 
Gonzales and staff respectfully requests it to be declared surplus.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
Approval of this resolution would be consistent with the policy approved in 2013.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The dollar amount that the surplus property is sold for will increase the general fund revenues.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 191 of 250



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-36 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS  
DECLARING CERTAIN CITY PROPERTY SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING THE 
SALE AND DONATION OF SAID PROPERTY IN THE MANNER MOST 
ADVANTAGEOUS TO THE CITY OF GONZALES; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, in 2013 the Council approved a policy whereby the Council would declare 
property that staff determined to be of no further use to the City to be surplus; and,   

WHEREAS, the policy states that Council will recommend the disposal method of the property; 
and 

WHEREAS, the attached properties listed have been determined to no longer have a use for the 
City of Gonzales and staff respectfully requests it to be declared surplus; and 

WHEREAS, the surplus property identified in Exhibit “A” are law enforcement radios that will 
be sold back to companies or donated to local law enforcement regulations in in a manner in 
which to be the most advantageous to the City of Gonzales. 

WHEREAS, the surplus vehicles identified in Exhibit “B” will be sold via governmental auction 
in a manner in which to be the most advantageous to the City of Gonzales. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the recitals contain in the preamble hereto are hereby found to be true and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Council. 
 
Section 2. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby declares the attached 
Exhibit A as surplus property and authorizes the sale or donation of said property in accordance 
with the forgoing legislative findings.  
 
Section 3. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby declares the attached 
Exhibit B as surplus property and authorizes the sale of said property in accordance with the 
forgoing legislative findings.  
 
Section 3. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 4. That it is officially found, determined and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 192 of 250



 

 

 
Section 5. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
Section 6. This Resolution shall not be construed to require or allow any act which is 
prohibited by an Ordinance.   

 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, 
Texas, on this 9th day of April, 2020.  
 
 
      CITY OF GONZALES 
       
 
              
            Connie Kacir, Mayor     
ATTEST:      
 
______________________________  
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 193 of 250



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 194 of 250



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 195 of 250



 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 196 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-37 Affirming the City of 
Gonzales does not Discriminate in the 
Provision of any Program Based on the Race, 
Color, National Origin, Age, Religion, Gender, 
Handicap Status, Veteran Status or Any Other 
Protected Status. 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Consent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In August of 2017, the City of Gonzales suffered damage to wastewater lines as a result of 
Hurricane Harvey. The State of Texas General Land Office (GLO) through the Golden Crescent 
Council of Governments allocated $852,300 in CDBG – DR (Disaster Recovery Funding) to the 
City of Gonzales for infrastructure improvements as a result of disaster declaration DR-4332-
2017.  Public comment was taken on this application from July 1, 2019 – July 31, 2019 and any 
comments and responses are incorporated into the grant application. The grant application was 
due to the General Land Office by August 31, 2019.  At the December 12, 2019, the City 
Council amended the resolution authorizing the application to include the dollar amount of the 
city’s contribution, which is $69,756.00 out of the Wastewater Department.   
 
On February 10, 2020, the City was awarded the CDBG-DR grant through the GLO.  Approval 
of the resolution is required as part of the grant award. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There will be an expenditure of $69,756.00 that will be funded out of the Wastewater 
Department.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Citizen Participation Plan (separate cover) 
Use of Force Policy (separate cover) 
Personnel Policy (separate cover) 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this Resolution. 
 

 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 197 of 250

https://www.dropbox.com/s/hx0kc1cbk5sylyl/3.4b.x.Gonzales_Section3Plan.docx?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/1tb4brnksfu89t1/3.4c.x.GO0303%20Use%20of%20Force-GPD.doc?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/2fy3j2m2j8a4h4i/3.4d.x.Personnel%20Policy%20Manual%20FINAL%2011.07.18.pdf?dl=0


 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-37 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, AFFIRMING 
CONCURRENCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964; 24 C.F.R. 
Part l, "NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS OF THE 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT"; TITLE VII OF THE 
CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, AS AMENDED BY THE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY ACT OF 1972; Title VIII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1968, 
"THE FAIR HOUSING ACT OF 1968", AS AMENDED; EXECUTIVE ORDER 11063, 
AS AMENDED BY EXECUTIVE ORDER 12259, AND 24 C. F.R. Part 107, 
"NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IN HOUSING UNDER  
EXECUTIVE ORDER 11063"; THE AGE DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 1975; SECTION 
504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973, AND AMERICANS WITH 
DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990 (ADA), INCLUDING THE ADA AMENDMENTS ACT OF 
2008 ; THE ARCHITECTURAL BARRIERS ACT OF 1968, INCLUDING THE USE OF 
A TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEVICE FOR PERSONS WHO ARE DEAF (TDDs) OR 
AN EQUALLY EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION SYSTEM; SECTION 3 OF THE 
HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968; THE CITY OF GONZALES 
“USE OF FORCE POLICY”; AND FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE 
MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
 
WHEREAS,   the City of Gonzales has received Community Development Block Grant Disaster 

Recovery (CDBG-DR) award through the Texas General Land Office (GLO) to 
provide wastewater line improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS,   the City of Gonzales affirms that it does not discriminate in the provision of any 

program based on the race, color, national origin, age, religion, gender, handicap 
status, veteran status, or any other protected status, of any individual; and 

 
WHEREAS,   the City of Gonzales has adopted a Citizen Participation Plan (attached) for 

soliciting and receiving resident input on federally assisted programs; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the City of Gonzales has adopted a “Use of Force Policy” (attached) establishing 

procedures whereby the City of Gonzales Police Department will use only the 
force necessary to achieve lawful objectives; and 

 
WHEREAS,   the City of Gonzales has adopted Personnel Policies (attached), that affirm that 

the City has and will continue to provide equal employment opportunity to all 
qualified persons and reaffirms its commitment that there shall be no 
discrimination against, or harassment of, applicants or employees because of race, 
color, sex, religion, national origin, age, genetic information, disability, veteran 
status or any other protected status.   

 
WHEREAS,   the City of Gonzales affirms when work is to be performed under a Section-3 

applicable contract, to the greatest extent feasible, opportunities for training and 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 198 of 250



 

 

employment will be given lower income residents of the project area and 
contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns 
which are located in the area or owned in substantial part by persons residing in 
the area of the project, per the Section 3 Plan (attached); and  

  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. That the recitals contain in the preamble hereto are hereby found to be true and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Council. 
 
Section 2.   The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby adopts the Section 3 Plan and 
authorizes the City Manager to enforce all certifications and assurances arising from this Plan; 
and 
 
Section 3.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales affirms the civil rights of all residents 
and directs and designates City Manager as the City’s Authorized Representative to act in all 
matters in connection with the aforementioned policies; and 
 
Section 4. That it is officially found, determined and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 
Section 5. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
Section 6. This Resolution shall not be construed to require or allow any act which is 
prohibited by an Ordinance.   

 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, 
Texas, on this 9th day of April, 2020.  
 
      CITY OF GONZALES 
       
      _____________________________ 
      Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 

  

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 199 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-38 Authorizing Designated 
Signators for Contractual and Financial 
Documents for the Texas General Land Office 
Community Development Block Grant 
Disaster Recovery Program. 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Consent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In August of 2017, the City of Gonzales suffered damage to wastewater lines as a result of 
Hurricane Harvey. The State of Texas General Land Office (GLO) through the Golden Crescent 
Council of Governments allocated $852,300 in CDBG – DR (Disaster Recovery Funding) to the 
City of Gonzales for infrastructure improvements as a result of disaster declaration DR-4332-
2017.  Public comment was taken on this application from July 1, 2019 – July 31, 2019 and any 
comments and responses are incorporated into the grant application. The grant application was 
due to the General Land Office by August 31, 2019.  At the December 12, 2019, the City 
Council amended the resolution authorizing the application to include the dollar amount of the 
city’s contribution, which is $69,756.00 out of the Wastewater Department.   
 
On February 10, 2020, the City was awarded the CDBG-DR grant through the GLO.  Approval 
of the resolution is required as part of the grant award. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There will be an expenditure of $69,756.00 that will be funded out of the Wastewater 
Department.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this Resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 200 of 250



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-38 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING 
DESIGNATED SIGNATORS FOR CONTRACTUAL AND FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS 
FOR THE TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE (GLO) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR) PROGRAM CONTRACT 20-
065-075-C203; DESIGNATING THE CITY MANAGER AS THE CITY’S AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE TO ACT IN ALL MATTERS IN CONNECTION WITH SAID 
GRANT; AND FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE MEETIN AT WHICH THIS 
RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Gonzales has received Community Development Block Grant Disaster 

Recovery (CDBG-DR) award through the Texas General Land Office (GLO) to 
provide wastewater line improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appoint persons to execute contractual and financial documents 

to request funds from the GLO; and 
 
WHEREAS, an original signed copy of the Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation 

Form is to be submitted with a copy of this Resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales acknowledges that in the event that an authorized signatory 

of the City changes (elections, illness, resignations etc), the City must provide the 
GLO with the following: (1) a Resolution stating the new authorized signatory 
(not required if this Resolution states only the title and not the name of the 
signatory) (2) a revised Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation Form. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. That the recitals contain in the preamble hereto are hereby found to be true and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Council. 
 
Section 2.   The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the Mayor and City 
Manager to execute contractual documents between the Texas General Land Office and City for 
the Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program project. 
 
Section 3.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the City Manager and 
Finance Director to execute all financial documents required for the requesting of funds 
approved in the GLO CDBG-DR Program project. 
 
Section 4.  The City Council directs and directs and designates City Manager as the City’s 
Authorized Representative to act in all matters in connection with the GLO CDBG-DR Program 
contract 20-065-075-C203. 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 201 of 250



 

 

Section 5. That it is officially found, determined and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 
Section 6. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall not be construed to require or allow any act which is 
prohibited by an Ordinance.   

 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, 
Texas, on this 9th day of April 2020.  
 
 
       CITY OF GONZALES 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 

  

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 202 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action 
Approving Resolution #2020-39 Accepting the 
Proposals and Awarding the Contract for the 
roof replacement and repairs at Gonzales 
Memorial Museum and Amphitheatre to 
RYCARS Construction  

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND:  
On January 16, 2020, City staff requested permission to issue a Request for Proposals for roof 
replacement and repairs at the Gonzales Memorial Museum and Amphitheatre.  The RFP was 
advertised for two consecutive weeks beginning on January 23, 2020 with a mandatory pre bid 
conference to be held January 30, 2020 at 9:00 am at the Gonzales Memorial Museum, there 
were 10 roofing companies present with staff.  The proposals were due February 13, 2020 by 
2:00 pm.  There were seven proposals received by RYCARS Construction, Rain Seal Master 
Roofing & Sheet Metal, Bravo Roofing, Atrium Roofing, American Roofing & Metal Co., Inc. 
L.D. Tebben Company, Inc., Advantage USAA, Inc.  The low bidder was RYCARS 
Construction, LLC with a base bid of $99,250.00 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS:   
This is consistent with what has been done in the past. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact if City Council chooses the lowest bid the City of Gonzales received for the 
repair/replacement of the Museum and Amphitheatre roof would be $99,250.00. When the 
budget was adopted, the City had budgeted $55,000.00 in Capital Improvements GL account 
100-7-660.640, $20,000.00 in Hotel/Motel GL account 500-7-811.526, and $6,000.00 in 
Museum Restricted GL account 500-7-812.640. The City also budgeted revenue in the amount of 
$30,000.00 for the Texas Historical Commission Texas Preservation Trust Fund Grant Award 
that the City received for replacing the roof on the Museum and Amphitheatre.  The total amount 
of expenditures that were budgeted was $81,000 and the revenue for the grant was $30,000.  
Since the bid came in higher than what was budgeted for the expense, a budget amendment is 
being presented at this meeting under a separate item to increase the Capital Improvements GL 
account 100-7-660.640 by $18,250 ($99,250-$81,000).  This amount will come from the fund 
balance of the General Fund. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Pre-bid meeting guest list and sign in sheet, bid evaluation and summary 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends awarding the contract to the lowest qualified bidder. 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 203 of 250



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-39 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
ACCEPTING THE PROPOSALS AND AWARDING THE CONTRACT FOR THE 
ROOF REPLACEMENT FOR THE GONZALES MEMORIAL TO RYCARS 
CONSTRUCTION, LLC; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year Budget 2019-2020 included $55,000 
from the Capital Improvements account, $20,000 from the Hotel/Motel account, $6,000 in the 
Museum Restricted account for the roof replacement to be competitively bid as per Chapter 252 
of the Local Government Code; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City was awarded a $30,000 Texas Historical Commission Texas Preservation 
Trust Fund Grant for the roof replacement; and 
 
WHEREAS, a budget amendment to increase the Capital Improvements GL expenditures by 
$18,250 will be necessary to complete the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the advertisements for the Request for Proposals were published in the newspaper 
for two consecutive weeks beginning January 23, 2020; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposals were due to be received by the City of Gonzales on February 13, 
2020 at 2:00 p.m.; and, 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received from seven companies including RYCARS Construction, 
LLC, by the due date published; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Local Government Code Section 252.043(a) states that the if the competitive 
bidding requirement applies to the contract for goods or services, the contract must be awarded 
to the lowest responsible bidder or to the bidder who provides goods and services at the best 
value for the municipality; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City evaluated the proposals and recommends awarding the contract to 
RYCARS Construction, LLC who is the lowest responsible bidder with a base bid amount of 
$99,250.00; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that entering into an agreement for the roof replacement for 
the Gonzales Memorial Museum is in the best interest of the City and its citizens and will 
further promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 204 of 250



 

 

Section 2.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby awards the contract for the 
Gonzales Memorial Museum Roof Replacement Project to RYCARS Construction, LLC and 
authorizes the City Manager to execute the agreement.   
 
Section 3. That it is officially found, determined and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall not be construed to require or allow any act which is 
prohibited by an Ordinance.   
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of April, 2020. 
 
       CITY OF GONZALES 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 

 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 205 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM   
Conduct second reading of a resolution and 
action on a resolution authorizing certain 
financial assistance up to $500,000.00 by the 
GEDC to be used as a line of credit or other 
financial assistance for businesses located 
within the City of Gonzales, Texas. 
 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the March 25, 2020 Emergency Council Meeting the City Council conducted the first of two 
readings of a resolution authorizing certain financial assistance up to $500,000 by the Gonzales 
Economic Development Corporation (GEDC) to be used as a line of credit or other financial 
assistance for businesses located within the City of Gonzales.  The GEDC held a special called 
meeting on March 30, 2020 to consider the City Council’s request and authorized a maximum of 
$500,000 to be allocated and appointed a committee to determine the rules and process for 
seeking loans or grants.  The GEDC is scheduled to hold another meeting on Monday, April 6, 
2020 to discuss items related to the project. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This item is brought forth at the request of the City Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Currently, the $500,000 is planned to be funded by the GEDC. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
This is a second reading of the resolution. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 206 of 250



 

 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS, APPROVING A TYPE B ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 505.158 OF 
THE TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UP TO $500,000.00 AS A LINE OF CREDIT 
OR OTHER FORM OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO BE USED FOR 
BUSINESSES LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared the 

COVID-19 outbreak a national health emergency beginning on March 1, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS,  on March 13, 2020, the Governor of the State of Texas declared a state of 

disaster for all counties in Texas in response to the COVID-19 outbreak; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation (hereinafter referred to 

as the “GEDC”) is a Type B Economic development corporation, created pursuant to Chapter 
505 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 505.158 of the Texas Local Government Code provides that “[f]or 

a Type B corporation authorized to be created by a municipality with a population of 20,000 or 
less, “project” also includes the land, buildings, equipment, facilities, expenditures, targeted 
infrastructure, and improvements found by the corporation’s board of directors to promote new 
or expanded business development.”  Further, the statute provides that “[a] Type B corporation 
may not undertake a project authorized by this section that requires an expenditure of more than 
$10,000 until the governing body of the corporation’s authorizing municipality adopts a 
resolution authorizing the project after giving the resolution at least two separate readings”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, finds and determines that 

providing a line of credit or other form of financial assistance in an amount not to exceed Five 
Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($500,000.00) for businesses located within the City 
of Gonzales, Texas, is consistent with and meets the definition of “project” as that term is 
defined in Section 505.158 of the Act; and the definition of “cost” as that term is defined by 
Section 501.152 of the Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, finds and determines that 
providing a line of credit or other form of financial assistance in an amount not to exceed Five 
Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($500,000.00) for businesses located within the City 
of Gonzales, Texas, is consistent with Act, nonetheless the GEDC must still following the 
requirements of the Act including the following: the public hearing requirement mandated by 
Section 505.159 of the Act;  the 60-day wait requirement pursuant to Section 505.160 of the Act; 
and the performance agreement requirement required by Section 501.158 of the Act, unless said 
requirements are subsequently waived or suspended by the Governor of the State of Texas due to 
the COVID-19 outbreak. 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 207 of 250



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS:  
  
Section 1.    That the foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct findings of the 
City of Gonzales, Texas, and are fully incorporated into the body of this Resolution. 

 
Section 2. That the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, finds and determines that 
providing a line of credit or other form of financial assistance in an amount not to exceed Five 
Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($500,000.00) for businesses located within the City 
of Gonzales, Texas, will promote new and expanded business development, and is otherwise 
consistent with Section 505.158 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
Section 3. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 4. That it is officially found, determined and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 
Section 5. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
Section 6. This Resolution shall not be construed to require or allow any act which is 
prohibited by an Ordinance.   

 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, 
Texas, on this 9th day of April, 2020.  
 
 
      CITY OF GONZALES 
       
 
              
            Connie Kacir, Mayor     
ATTEST:      
 
______________________________  
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary   
 
        

 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 208 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action 
Approving Resolution #2020-40 Appointing a 
Board Member to the Gonzales Economic 
Development Corporation 
 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As per the Charter the City Council shall have the power to appoint the members of all boards 
and commissions. Such boards and commissions shall have all powers and duties created by the 
charter, by city ordinance or by law. 
 
Mr. Dewey Smith was originally appointed to the EDC in 2016 and was most recently 
reappointed for a two-year term commencing on October 1, 2019.  His current term ends 
September 30, 2021.  Mr. Smith submitted his resignation effective immediately on April 9, 
2020, leaving one vacancy on the EDC.  Attached under separate cover are applications received 
last fiscal year from interested individuals. 
  
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with past operations.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council action deemed appropriate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 209 of 250



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-40 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
APPOINTING A BOARD MEMBER TO THE GONZALES ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION; ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council shall have the power to appoint the members of all boards and 
commissions; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the boards and commissions shall have all powers and duties created by the 
charter, city ordinance or by law; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2019 the City Council reappointed Dewey Smith to the Gonzales 
Economic Development Corporation for a two-year term ending September 30, 2021; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on March 20, 2020 Mr. Dewey Smith resigned from the Economic Development 
Corporation effective immediately; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby appoints ____________________to the Gonzales 
Economic Development Corporation filling an unexpired term ending on September 30, 2021.    
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby appoints 
____________________ to the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation filling an 
unexpired term ending on September 30, 2021.    
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 210 of 250



 

 

 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of April, 2020. 
 
       CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 

 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 211 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2020-41 Denying Texas Gas Service 
Company’s Requested Rate Increase. 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Consent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
From the Staff Report law firm representing the Central Texas Service Area Cities: 

On December 20, 2019, Texas Gas Service Company, a Division of ONE Gas, Inc., (“TGS” or 
“Company”), pursuant to Gas Utility Regulatory Act § 104.102, filed its Statement of Intent to 
change gas rates in all municipalities exercising original jurisdiction within the City of 
Beaumont, the Central Texas Service Area, and Gulf Coast Service Area and to consolidate these 
Service Areas into the proposed Central-Gulf Coast Service Area, effective February 6, 2020.  

In a prior City action, TGS’s rate request was suspended from taking effect for 90 days, the 
fullest extent permissible under the law, until May 6, 2020.  This time period has permitted the 
City, through its participation in the CTSA Cities and GCSA Cities, to determine that the 
proposed rate increase and consolidation are unreasonable.  Consistent with the 
recommendations of experts engaged by CTSA Cities and GCSA Cities, TGS’s request for a rate 
increase and consolidation of service areas should be denied. 
 
Accordingly, the purpose of the Resolution is to deny the rate change application proposed by 
TGS.  
 
Explanation of “Be It Resolved” Sections: 
 
Section 2. This section finds that the Company’s application is unreasonable and should be 
denied.  

 
Section 3. This section requires TGS to maintain its existing rates within the City.  

Section 4. This section states that City’s reasonable rate case expenses, through the CTSA 
Cities and GCSA Cities, shall be reimbursed by TGS within 30 days of presentation of an 
invoice to TGS.  
 
Section 5. This section provides that the City will notify counsel for TGS and counsel for 
CTSA Cities and GCSA Cities of the City’s action by sending a copy of the approved and signed 
Resolution to each counsel. 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 212 of 250



 

 

Section 6. This section recites that the Resolution was passed at a meeting that was open to 
the public and that the consideration of the Resolution was properly noticed.  
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this Resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 213 of 250



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-41 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
DENYING TEXAS GAS SERVICE COMPANY’S 
REQUESTED RATE INCREASE; REQUIRING THE 
COMPANY TO REIMBURSE THE CITY’S REASONABLE 
RATEMAKING EXPENSES; FINDING THAT THE 
MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; 
REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE 
COMPANY AND THE CITY’S LEGAL COUNSEL 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales, Texas (“City”) is a gas utility customer of Texas Gas 
Service Company, a Division of ONE Gas, Inc., (“TGS” or “Company”), and is a regulatory 
authority under the Gas Utility Regulatory Act (“GURA”), and under Chapter 104, § 104.001 et 
seq. of GURA has exclusive original jurisdiction over TGS’s rates, operations, and services 
within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City cooperated with a coalition of similarly situated cities served by 
the Company that have joined together to facilitate the review and response to natural gas issues 
affecting rates charged in TGS’s Central Texas Service Area and Gulf Coast Service Area 
(“CTSA Cities” and “GCSA Cities”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on or about December 20, 2019, the Company filed a Statement of Intent 
with the City to increase rates in all municipalities exercising original jurisdiction within the City 
of Beaumont, the Central Texas Service Area, and the Gulf Coast Service Area by $15,670,445, 
and to consolidate these Service Areas into the proposed Central-Gulf Coast Service Area; and 
 

WHEREAS, TGS proposed February 6, 2020 as the effective date for its requested 
increase in rates; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City passed resolution No. 2020-09 to suspend the effective date of 
TGS’s requested rate increase for the maximum period allowed by law, until May 6, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, the CTSA Cities and GCSA Cities hired and directed legal counsel and 
consultants to prepare a common response to the Company’s requested system-wide rate increase 
and proposed consolidation of service areas, which resulted in a conclusion that TGS’s rates are 
not reasonable, the proposed consolidation of services areas is not reasonable, and a 
recommendation that the rate request and consolidation be denied; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the GURA § 103.022 provides that costs incurred by CTSA Cities and 
GCSA Cities in ratemaking activities are to be reimbursed by the regulated utility. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 214 of 250



 

 

Section 1. That the recitals contain in the preamble hereto are hereby found to be true and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the Council. 
 
Section 2. That the rates proposed by TGS to be recovered through its gas rates charged to 
customers located within the City limits are hereby found to be unreasonable and shall be denied. 

 
Section 3. That the Company shall continue to charge its existing rates to customers within 
the City and that said existing rates are reasonable. 

 
Section 4. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by the 
Company. 
 
Section 5. A copy of this Resolution shall be sent to TGS, care of Stephanie G. Houle, Texas 
Gas Service Company, Barton Skyway IV, 1301 S. Mopac, Suite 400, Austin, Texas 78746 
(Stephanie.Houle@onegas.com), and to Thomas Brocato at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & 
Townsend, P.C., 816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1900, Austin, Texas  78701 
(tbrocato@lglawfirm.com). 
 
Section 6. That it is officially found, determined and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval. 
 
Section 8. This Resolution shall not be construed to require or allow any act which is 
prohibited by an Ordinance.   

 
 PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, 
Texas, on this 9th day of April, 2020.  
 
 
      CITY OF GONZALES 
 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 215 of 250

mailto:tbrocato@lglawfirm.com


     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider and Possible Action on 
Ordinance #2020-09 Authorizing Budget 
Amendments for the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year 

 

 

 

 
TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Ordinance 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 12, 2019 the City Council of the City of Gonzales Approved the Operating 
Budget for the City of Gonzales for the Fiscal Year Beginning October 1, 2019 and ending 
September 30, 2020. 
 
Budget Amendment #1 
The City Council of the City of Gonzales approved Resolution 2020-22 Authorizing Approval of 
the proposal from Mark Metzler Welding, LLC and to provide direction as to funding of Project 
in the amount of $43,500.00. There is currently $85,000 that was budgeted for this project in 
Vehicles/Equipment GL Account 100-7-105.608, but Council asked the Gonzales Main Street to 
take the funding request to the Gonzales Convention and Visitor Bureau to see if they could give 
any funding assistance for the custom stage.  The Gonzales Convention and Visitor Bureau met 
on Thursday, February 20, 2020 and voted to pay for one-half of the stage. Staff is requesting a 
Budget Amendment in the amount of $21,750 for Account #500-7-811.415 which is Hotel/Motel 
Taxes and will come from the fund balance of the Hotel/Motel Fund.     
 
Main Street  500-7-811.415   $21,750.00 
Vehicles/Equipment 100-7-105.608             -$21,750.00 
 
Budget Amendment #2 
The City Council of the City of Gonzales approved Resolution 2018-94 Accepting the Proposals 
and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement for the Hydro Station Renovation.  
On that same day, City Council of the City of Gonzales Accepted the Proposals and Authorized 
the City Manager to Execute an Agreement for the Gonzales Hydro-Mechanical/Electrical 
Renovations.  In addition to those Contracts, the City of Gonzales had to purchase a Raw Water 
Intake Pump, have a tree removed as per FERQ’s request that was close to the Dam, and the 
purchase of miscellaneous parts and tools to get the hydro in working condition.  The City of 
Gonzales is still incurring engineering fees while Schneider is working on fully getting the plant 
de-registered with ERCOT.  Staff also felt that it was in the best interest of the City to have 
cameras installed at the Hydro which will cause the City to incur a monthly fee for internet 
access to the Hydro.  Staff is requesting a Budget Amendment for several GL accounts and these 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 216 of 250



 

 

funds will come from the fund balance of the Electric Fund. 
 
Special Contracts 210-7-809.411   $     400.00 
Engineering  210-7-809.423   $17,000.00 
Capital Improvement 210-7-809.640   $86,000.00 
Internet Access 210-7-710.405   $  1,100.00 
    
Budget Amendment #3 
The City Council of the City of Gonzales approved Resolution 2020-33 Approving the Creation 
of Job Descriptions, Amending Position Classification and Amending the Annual Budget 
Personnel Request Summary to Include a Part-Time Hydro Plant Station Technician.  The fiscal 
impact for that position will be no more than $16,483.49 which includes taxes, unemployment 
and workers comp for a part time employee working no more than 1,000 hours a year.  Staff is 
requesting a Budget Amendment for several GL accounts and these funds will come from the 
fund balance of the Electric Fund. 
 
Part-Time Salaries 210-7-710.103   $15,000.00 
FICA   210-7-710.110   $  1,147.50 
Unemployment 210-7-710.111   $       85.50 
Workers Comp 210-7-710.113   $     250.49 
 
Budget Amendment #4 
When the 2019-2020 budget was adopted on September 12, 2019, there were no funds budgeted 
in the City Council Department for cell phones for City Council members.  A few of the Council 
members have expressed interest in getting a City issued cell phone to be used for all City 
business.  Staff is requesting a Budget Amendment for the following GL Account which will 
come from the fund balance of the General Fund. 
 
Cell Phones  100-7-101.404   $1,000.00 
 
Budget Amendment #5 
City Staff requested proposals for roof replacement and repairs at the Gonzales Memorial 
Museum and Amphitheatre.  They received seven proposals and the low bidder was RYCARS 
Construction, LLC with a base bid of $99,250.  The total amount of expenditures that were 
budgeted was $81,000 and the revenue for the grant was $30,000.  Since the bid came in higher 
than what was budgeted for the expense, a budget amendment is being presented to increase the 
Capital Improvements GL account 100-7-660.640 by $18,250 ($99,250-$81,000).  This amount 
will come from the fund balance of the General Fund. 
 
Capital Improvements 100-7-660.640   $18,250.00 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
Approval of these budget amendments is consistent with current policy.  
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 217 of 250



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
This Ordinance will amend the budget.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see Exhibit “A” for a listing of the budget amendments. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this ordinance.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 218 of 250



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-09 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, APPROVING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT TO THE OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF GONZALES FOR 
FISCAL YEAR OCTOBER 1, 2019 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2020; 
ESTABLISHING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, an annual operating budget for the fiscal year October 1, 2019 through September 
30, 2020, was approved and adopted by the City Council on September 12, 2019; and, 
 
WHEREAS, amendments to said budget have been deemed necessary as itemized in "Exhibit 
A" attached hereto and made a part hereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, said full and final consideration of said budget amendments have been held in a 
legally posted public meeting of the City Council, and it is the consensus of opinion that the 
budget amendments as submitted, should be approved and adopted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby amends the budget for 
the 2019-20 fiscal year as set forth in the Attached “Exhibit A”, which is fully incorporated 
herein by reference. 
  
Section 2. That this Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Gonzales, 
Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of 
such ordinances, in which event the more restrictive shall apply. 

Section 3. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 4. All ordinances or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 5. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 6. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 219 of 250



 

 

Section 7. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 8. This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 9th day of April, 2020. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristi Gilbert, Interim City Secretary  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 220 of 250



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Budget Amendment #1 
The City Council of the City of Gonzales approved Resolution 2020-22 Authorizing Approval of 
the proposal from Mark Metzler Welding, LLC and to provide direction as to funding of Project 
in the amount of $43,500.00. There is currently $85,000 that was budgeted for this project in 
Vehicles/Equipment GL Account 100-7-105.608, but Council asked the Gonzales Main Street to 
take the funding request to the Gonzales Convention and Visitor Bureau to see if they could give 
any funding assistance for the custom stage.  The Gonzales Convention and Visitor Bureau met 
on Thursday, February 20, 2020 and voted to pay for one-half of the stage. Staff is requesting a 
Budget Amendment in the amount of $21,750 for Account #500-7-811.415 which is Hotel/Motel 
Taxes and will come from the fund balance of the Hotel/Motel Fund.     
 
Main Street  500-7-811.415   $21,750.00 
Vehicles/Equipment 100-7-105.608             -$21,750.00 
 
Budget Amendment #2 
The City Council of the City of Gonzales approved Resolution 2018-94 Accepting the Proposals 
and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement for the Hydro Station Renovation.  
On that same day, City Council of the City of Gonzales Accepted the Proposals and Authorized 
the City Manager to Execute an Agreement for the Gonzales Hydro-Mechanical/Electrical 
Renovations.  In addition to those Contracts, the City of Gonzales had to purchase a Raw Water 
Intake Pump, have a tree removed as per FERQ’s request that was close to the Dam, and the 
purchase of miscellaneous parts and tools to get the hydro in working condition.  The City of 
Gonzales is still incurring engineering fees while Schneider is working on fully getting the plant 
de-registered with ERCOT.  Staff also felt that it was in the best interest of the City to have 
cameras installed at the Hydro which will cause the City to incur a monthly fee for internet 
access to the Hydro.  Staff is requesting a Budget Amendment for several GL accounts and these 
funds will come from the fund balance of the Electric Fund. 
 
Special Contracts 210-7-809.411   $     400.00 
Engineering  210-7-809.423   $17,000.00 
Capital Improvement 210-7-809.640   $86,000.00 
Internet Access 210-7-710.405   $  1,100.00 
    
Budget Amendment #3 
The City Council of the City of Gonzales approved Resolution 2020-33 Approving the Creation 
of Job Descriptions, Amending Position Classification and Amending the Annual Budget 
Personnel Request Summary to Include a Part-Time Hydro Plant Station Technician.  The fiscal 
impact for that position will be no more than $16,483.49 which includes taxes, unemployment 
and workers comp for a part time employee working no more than 1,000 hours a year.  Staff is 
requesting a Budget Amendment for several GL accounts and these funds will come from the 
fund balance of the Electric Fund. 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 221 of 250



 

 

Part-Time Salaries 210-7-710.103   $15,000.00 
FICA   210-7-710.110   $  1,147.50 
Unemployment 210-7-710.111   $       85.50 
Workers Comp 210-7-710.113   $     250.49 
 
Budget Amendment #4 
When the 2019-2020 budget was adopted on September 12, 2019, there were no funds budgeted 
in the City Council Department for cell phones for City Council members.  A few of the Council 
members have expressed interest in getting a City issued cell phone to be used for all City 
business.  Staff is requesting a Budget Amendment for the following GL Account which will 
come from the fund balance of the General Fund. 
 
Cell Phones  100-7-101.404   $1,000.00 
 
Budget Amendment #5 
City Staff requested proposals for roof replacement and repairs at the Gonzales Memorial 
Museum and Amphitheatre.  They received seven proposals and the low bidder was RYCARS 
Construction, LLC with a base bid of $99,250.  The total amount of expenditures that were 
budgeted was $81,000 and the revenue for the grant was $30,000.  Since the bid came in higher 
than what was budgeted for the expense, a budget amendment is being presented to increase the 
Capital Improvements GL account 100-7-660.640 by $18,250 ($99,250-$81,000).  This amount 
will come from the fund balance of the General Fund. 
 
Capital Improvements 100-7-660.640   $18,250.00 

 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 222 of 250



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: April 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discussion and possible action on an 
ordinance amending and possibly extending 
the public health emergency declaration 
regarding precautionary measures in reference 
to the COVID-19 virus.   

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Ordinance 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On March 15, 2020 Mayor Kacir issued a disaster declaration in response to COVID-19 which 
was subsequently extended by the City Council at their March 16, 2020 Special meeting to April 
9th.  Since the March 16, 2020 meeting, President Trump, the Center for Disease Control and 
Prevention, Governor Abbott and the City Council have amended the disaster declarations for 
more restrictive measures.  The most recent City Council action was taken on March 25, 2020 
and Governor Abbott issued Executive Order GA-14 on March 31, 2020 extending the disaster 
declaration through April 30, 2020. 
(Information current as of March 31, 2020) 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This item is being presented to council for their approval and to ensure transparency for the use 
of these funds.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Unknown at this time. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 20-08 Amending and Superseded the Prior Declaration of Local Disaster (adopted 
March 25, 2020) 
Executive Order GA-14 Issued by Governor Abbott on March 31, 2020. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends that City Council take the action they deem necessary. 

 
 

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 223 of 250



ORDINANCE 2020-08

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES 
AMENDING AND SUPERSEDING THE PRIOR DECLARATION OF LOCAL 
DISASTER; ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE DURATION OF 
THE DISASTER; ESTABLISHING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS; 
RESTRICTING CERTAIN ACTIVITIES; ESTABLISHING PENALTIES FOR 
VIOLATIONS.

WHEREAS, in December 2019 a novel coronavirus, now designated COVID-19, was detected 
in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China. Symptoms of COVID-19 include fever, cough, and 
shortness of breath. Outcomes have ranged from mild to severe illness, and in some cases death;
and

WHEREAS, on January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization Director General declared the 
outbreak of COVID-19 as a Public Health Emergency of International Concern (PHEIC), advising 
countries to prepare for the containment, detection, isolation and case management, contact tracing 
and prevention of onward spread of the disease; and

WHEREAS, on March 5,2020, the World Health Organization Director General urged aggressive 
preparedness and activation of emergency plans to aggressively change the trajectory of this 
epidemic; and

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared that the COVID-19 
outbreak should be characterized as pandemic; and

WHEREAS, the Center for Disease Control and Prevention is closely monitoring the growing 
number of COVID-19 cases that have spread into the United States; and

WHEREAS, over 55,330 cases of COVID-19 have been reported in the United States, including 
804 deaths; and

WHEREAS, President Trump declared a national emergency on March 13, 2020; and

WHEREAS, Governor Greg Abbott declared a public health disaster on March 13, 2020; and

WHEREAS, reports received as of March 24, 2020, report more than 803 cases in Texas, and 9 
fatalities; and

WHEREAS, Covid-19 is more contagious than seasonal influenza once symptoms appear, it may 
be possible to control by testing widely and quickly isolating those who have the disease; and

WHEREAS, DSHS, the Texas Division of Emergency Management, and other state agencies 
continue their ongoing preparations so that all of state government is working together to limit the 
spread of the virus and protect Texans; and

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 224 of 250



FILED IN THE OFRCE OF THEMarch 31, 2020 SECRETARY OF STATE
2i’t’4 O’CLOCK

12020

Secreary of StateThe Honorable Ruth R. Hughs
Secretary of State
State Capitol Room lE.8
Austin, Texas 78701

Dear Secretary Hughs:

Pursuant to his powers as Governor of the State of Texas, Greg Abbott has issued the following:

Executive Order No. GA-14 relating to statewide continuity of essential services
and activities during the COVID-19 disaster.

The original executive order is attached to this letter of transmittal.

Respectfully submitted,

In8

Clerk to the Governor

GOVERNOR GREG ABBOTT

Attachment

POST OFFICE Box 12428 AUSTIN, TEXAS 78711 512-463-2000 (VOICE) DIAL 7-1-1 foR RELAY SERVICES

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 225 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 226 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 227 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 228 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 229 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 230 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 231 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 232 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 233 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 234 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 235 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 236 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 237 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 238 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 239 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 240 of 250



April 9, 2020 Council Packet 241 of 250



xrcufhir Irbir
BY THE

GOVERNOR OF THE STATE OF TEXAS

Executive Department
Austin, Texas

March 31, 2020

EXECUTIVE ORDER
GA14

Relating to statewide continuity of essential services aizd activities
during the COVID-19 disaster.

WHEREAS, I, Greg Abbott, Governor of Texas, issued a disaster proclamation on March 13,
2020, certifying under Section 418.0 14 of the Texas Government Code that the novel
coronavirus (COVID- 19) poses an imminent threat of disaster for all counties in the State of
Texas; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS), Dr.
John Hellerstedt, has determined that COVID-19 represents a public health disaster within the
meaning of Chapter 81 of the Texas Health and Safety Code; and

WHEREAS., I have issued numerous executive orders and suspensions of Texas laws in response
to the COVID-l9 disaster, aimed at protecting the health and safety of Texans and ensuring an
effective response to this disaster; and

WHEREAS, I issued Executive Order GA-08 on March 19, 2020, mandating certain obligations
for Texans in accordance with the President’s Coronavirus Guidelines for America, as
promulgated by President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) on March 16, 2020, which called upon Americans to take actions to slow the spread of
COVID-19 for 15 days; and

WHEREAS, Executive Order GA-08 is subject to expiration at 11:59 p.m. on April 3, 2020,
absent further action by the governor; and

WHEREAS, on March 29, 2020, to avoid scenarios that could lead to hundreds of thousands of
deaths, the President announced that, based on advice from Dr. Anthony Fauci and Dr. Deborah
Birx, the restrictive social-distancing Guidelines should extend through April 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, DSHS Commissioner Dr. Hellerstedt and White House Coronavirus Response
Coordinator Dr. Birx say that the spread of COVID- 19 can be reduced by minimizing social
gatherings;, and

WHEREAS, on March 28, 2020, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security issued its Guidance
on the Essential Critical Infrastructure Workforce, Version 2.0, which provides an advisory list
of critical-infrastructure sectors, workers, and functions that should continue during the COVID
19 response; and

WHEREAS, for state agencies and their employees and agents, the Office of the Attorney
General of Texas has advised that local restrictions issued in response to the COVD- 19 disaster
do not apply to restrict the conduct of state business; and

FILED IN ‘r O- UF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

2. tfr\ O’CLOCK

MAR 3 1 2020
April 9, 2020 Council Packet 242 of 250



Governor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-14
March 31, 2020 Page 2

WHEREAS, all government entities and businesses should be allowed to continue providing
essential services during the COVID-19 disaster, and all critical infrastructure should be allowed
to remain operational; and

WHEREAS, the “governor is responsible for meeting . . . the dangers to the state and people
presented by disasters” under Section 418.011 ofthe Texas Government Code, and the
legislature has given the governor broad authority to fulfill that responsibility; and

WHEREAS, under Section 418.0 12, the “governor may issue executive orders ... hav[ing] the
force and effect of law;” and

WHEREAS, under Section 418.016(a), the “governor may suspend the provisions of any
regulatory statute prescribing the procedures for conduct of state business ... if strict
compliance with the provisions ... would in any way prevent, hinder, or delay necessary action
in coping with a disaster;” and

WHEREAS, under Section 418.017(a), the “governor may use all available resources of state
government and of political subdivisions that are reasonably necessary to cope with a disaster;”
and

WHEREAS, under Section 4 18.018(c), the “governor may control ingress and egress to and from
a disaster area and the movement of persons and the occupancy of premises in the area;” and

WHEREAS, under Section 418. 173, failure to comply with any executive order issued during the
COVD-19 disaster is an offense punishable by a fine not to exceed $1,000, confinement in jail
for a term not to exceed 180 days, or both fine and confinement.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Greg Abbott, Governor of Texas, by virtue of the power and authority
vested in me by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, do hereby order the following on
a statewide basis effective 12:01 a.m. on April 2, 2020, and continuing through April 30, 2020,
subject to extension based on the status of COVLD-19 in Texas and the recommendations of the
CDC and the White House Coronavirus Task Force:

In accordance with guidance from DSHS Commissioner Dr. Hellerstedt, and to achieve
the goals established by the President to reduce the spread of COVD-19, every person in
Texas shall, except where necessary to provide or obtain essential services, minimize
social gatherings and minimize in-person contact with people who are not in the same
household.

“Essential services” shall consist of everything listed by the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security in its Guidance on the Essential Critical Infrastructure Workforce,
Version 2.0, plus religious services conducted in churches, congregations, and houses of
worship. Other essential services may be added to this list with the approval of the Texas
Division of Emergency Management (TDEM). TDEM shall maintain an online list of
essential services, as specified in this executive order and in any approved additions.
Requests for additions should be directed to TDEM at EssentialServices@tdem.texas.gov
or by visiting www.tdem.texas.gov/essentialservices.

In providing or obtaining essential services, people and businesses should follow the
Guidelines from the President and the CDC by practicing good hygiene, environmental
cleanliness, and sanitation, implementing social distancing, and working from home if
possible. In particular, all services should be provided through remote telework from

FILED IN THE OFFiCE OP ‘F
SECRETARY OF STATE

— 2FM O1CLOcK

MAR 372020
April 9, 2020 Council Packet 243 of 250



Governor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-14
March 31, 2020 Page 3

home unless they are essential services that cannot be provided through remote telework.
If religious services cannot be conducted from home or through remote services, they
should be conducted consistent with the Guidelines from the President and the CDC by
practicing good hygiene, environmental cleanliness, and sanitation, and by implementing
social distancing to prevent the spread of COVID-19.

In accordance with the Guidelines from the President and the CDC, people shall avoid
eating or drinking at bars, restaurants, and food courts, or visiting gyms, massage
establishments, tattoo studios, piercing studios, or cosmetology salons; provided,
however, that the use of drive-thru, pickup, or delivery options for food and drinks is
allowed and highly encouraged throughout the limited duration of this executive order.

This executive order does not prohibit people from accessing essential services or
engaging in essential daily activities, such as going to the grocery store or gas station,
providing or obtaining other essential services, visiting parks, hunting or fishing, or
engaging in physical activity like jogging or bicycling, so long as the necessary
precautions are maintained to reduce the transmission of COVID- 19 and to minimize in-
person contact with people who are not in the same household.

In accordance with the Guidelines from the President and the CDC, people shall not visit
nursing homes, state supported living centers, assisted living facilities, or long-term care
facilities unless to provide critical assistance as determined through guidance from the
Texas Health and Human Services Commission.

In accordance with the Guidelines from the President and the CDC, schools shall remain
temporarily closed to in-person classroom attendance and shall not recommence before
May 4, 2020.

This executive order shall supersede any conflicting order issued by local officials in
response to the COVD-19 disaster, but only to the extent that such a local order restricts
essential services allowed by this executive order or allows gatherings prohibited by this
executive order. I hereby suspend Sections 418.1015(b) and 418.108 of the Texas
Government Code, Chapter 81, Subchapter E of the Texas Health and Safety Code, and
any other relevant statutes, to the extent necessary to ensure that local officials do not
impose restrictions inconsistent with this executive order, provided that local officials
may enforce this executive order as well as local restrictions that are consistent with this
executive order.

Given under my hand this the 31st day of
March, 2020.

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

2 1’M O’CLOCK

MAR 31 2020

This executive order supersedes Executive Order GA-08, but not Executive Orders GA-09, GA-
10, GA-li, GA-12, or GA-13, and shall remain in effect and in full force until April 30, 2020,
unless it is modified, amended, rescinded, or superseded by the governor.

GREG ABBOTT
Governor

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 244 of 250



Governor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-14
March 31, 2020 Page 4

ATTESTED BY:

(RUTH R. HUGHS
Secretary of State

FILED IN THE OFFCE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

2. ?!4 O’CLOCK

MAR 3; 2020

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 245 of 250



WHEREAS, the Center for Disease Control recommends the use of videoconferencing for 
meetings when possible, and adjusting or postponing large meetings or gatherings; and

WHEREAS, the Center for Disease Control recommends citizens stay home if they are feeling 
sick or when they have a sick family member in their home; and

WHEREAS, households with vulnerable seniors and those with underlying health conditions 
should conduct themselves as if they were a significant risk to the person with underlying 
conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Texas Disaster Act of 1975, the mayor is designated as the 
emergency management director of the City of Gonzales, and may exercise the powers granted to 
the governor on an appropriate local scale; and

WHEREAS, a declaration of local disaster and public health emergency includes the ability to 
reduce the possibility of exposure to disease, control the risk, promote health, compel persons to 
undergo additional health measures that prevent or control the spread of disease, including 
isolation, surveillance, quarantine, or placement of persons under public health observation, 
including the provision of temporary housing or emergency shelters for persons misplaced or 
evacuated and request assistance from the governor of state resources; and

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 vims spreads between people who are in close contact with one another 
through respiratory droplets produced when an infected person coughs or sneezes; and

WHEREAS, the continued worldwide spread of COVID-19 presents an imminent threat of 
widespread illness, which requires emergency action; and

WHEREAS, a declaration of local disaster includes the ability to take measures to reduce the 
possibility of exposure to disease, control the risk, and promote the health and safety of Gonzales 
residents; and

WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales will work collaboratively with Gonzales County to ensure that all 
appropriate and necessary measures are taken to limit the development, contraction and spread of 
COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, by a Declaration of Public Health Emergency, all rules and regulations that may 
inhibit or prevent prompt response to this threat are suspended for the duration of the incident; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted to the Mayor under the Texas Disaster Act of 1975, 
the use of all available resources of state government and political subdivisions to assist in the 
City’s response to this situation are authorized; and

WHEREAS, Connie Kacir, the Mayor of the City of Gonzales, Texas has determined, and the 
City Council has affirmed, that extraordinary and immediate measures must be taken to respond 
quickly, prevent and alleviate the suffering of people exposed to and those infected with the vims, 
as well as those that could potentially be infected or impacted by COVID-19.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS:

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 246 of 250



Section 1. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such 
recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted 
as a part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 2. That the local state of disaster and public health emergency declared by Mayor 
Kacir for the City of Gonzales pursuant to §418.108(a) of the Texas Government 
Code and as renewed and extended for a period of 24 days until the April 9th 
meeting of the City Council by the Gonzales City Council through the adoption of 
Ordinance 20-06 pursuant to §418.108(b) of the Government Code, is hereby 
superseded and amended, including all rules and regulation, as attached hereto as 
Exhibit A.

Section 3. Pursuant to §418.108(c) of the Government Code, this declaration of a local state 
of disaster and public health emergency shall be given prompt and general publicity 
and shall be fded promptly with the City Clerk.

Section 4. Pursuant to §418.108(d) of the Government Code, this declaration of a local state 
of disaster and public health emergency activates the City of Gonzales’s 
participation in any city, county or state emergency management plan.

Pursuant to §418.020(c) of the Government Code, this declaration authorizes the 
City to commandeer or use any private property, temporarily acquire, by lease or 
other means, sites required for temporary housing units or emergency shelters, 
subject to compensation requirements.

Pursuant to §122.006 of the Health and Safety Code, this declaration authorizes the 
City to take any actions necessary to promote health and suppress disease, 
including quarantine, examining and regulating hospitals, regulating ingress and 
egress from the City, and fining those who do not comply with the City’s rules.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Section 7. All ordinances or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and 
the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 
herein.

Section 8. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the United States of America.

If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the 
application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless 
be valid, and the City Council hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been 
enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 9.

Section 10. It is officially found, detennined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, 
and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting,

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 247 of 250



including this Ordinance, was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code, as amended.

Section 11. The City Manager is authorized to postpone utility cut-offs during this emergency 
and to make necessary payment plans for those needing extensions of time for 
payments.

Section 12. The Mayor of the City of Gonzales is authorized to update restrictions set out in 
this Exhibit as necessary and upon the advice of Dr. Commie Hisey as the 
designated Director of Health for the City of Gonzales, to respond to the evolving 
circumstances of this outbreak during the duration.

Section 13. Because of the economic impact on local businesses as a direct result of the public 
health emergency related to COVID-19, the City Council DIRECTS the Gonzales 
Economic Development Corporation and Gonzales Main Street to review all 
unencumbered funds and develop economic development programs for immediate 
approval of the City Council. The focus of these programs shall be for the retention 
and diversification of the existing local businesses impacted by this crisis. Said 
programs must retain existing employees and shall be in the form of grants and/or 
low interest loans of varying amounts and shall be on the City Council agenda on 
April 9lh for final approval.

Section 14. Any person, firm, corporation or agent who shall violate a provision of this 
ordinance, or fail to comply therewith, or with any other requirements thereof, 
shall be guilty of a Class C misdemeanor. Such person shall be considered guilty 
of a separate offense for each and every day or portion thereof during which any 
violation of any of the provisions of this article is committed or continued, and 
upon conviction of any such violation, such person shall be punished by a fine 
not to exceed $1,000.00.

Any peace officer or other person with lawful authority is further authorized to 
enforce the provisions of the Ordinance in accordance with the authority granted 
under the Texas Disaster Act of 1975, as applicable, which allows a fine not to 
exceed $1000.00 and confinement not to exceed 180 days as set forth in Texas 
Government Code §418.173.

Section 15. This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and any 
publication required by law.

PASSED, ADOPTED, APPROVED, AND EFFECTIVE THE 25th DAY of MARCH, 2020

CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS

Connie Kacir, Mayor

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 248 of 250



ATTEST:

//iCristi Gilbert, 'rim City Secretary

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 249 of 250



EXHIBIT A
PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY RULES AND REGULATIONS

I. All public places:

a. Requested to provide sanitation outside of their business and post notice to the public:
All persons are required to sanitize prior to entry and exit of their building

b. Public places are to sanitize all public areas every hour

c. All public and private gatherings and public spaces are limited to an occupancy of 10 
persons maximum effectively immediately, as set forth in more detail below.

II. City Facilities:

a. All municipal buildings shall be disinfected daily.

b. In person payments shall not be accepted. Online, drop box, drive-thru and mail-in 
payments ONLY at City Hall.

c. Municipal Court settings for the next 30 days shall be continued and reset, and no in person 
pleas will be accepted.

d. Playground equipment and splash pad in the city parks are closed until further notice.

e. All events scheduled to be held at J.B. Wells within the next 30 days shall be rescheduled.

III. Rules Regarding Public and Private Gatherings:

a. This Exhibit “A” incorporates and adopts, except as where noted below, the Centers for 
Disease Control (“CDC”) Interim Guidance for Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) 
dated March 15, 2019 and any Orders of the Texas Governor.

b. The virus that causes COVID-19 is easily transmitted, especially in group settings, and it 
is essential that the spread of the virus be slowed to protect the ability of public and private 
health care providers to handle an influx of patients and safeguard public health and safety.

c. Because of the risk of the rapid spread of the virus, and the need to protect the most 
vulnerable members of the community, ALL INDOOR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE 
GATHERINGS AND OUTDOOR GATHERINGS OF TEN (10) PERSONS OR 
MORE ANYWHERE IN THE CITY OF GONZALES BEGINNING AT 11:59 P.M. 
ON MARCH 26, 2020 AND CONTINUING TO APRIL 9, 2020 UNLESS FURTHER 
EXTENDED AND RENEWED CITY COUNCIL ON OR PRIOR TO THIS DATE, 
ARE PROHIBITED.

April 9, 2020 Council Packet 250 of 250


	1 Agenda 4-09-2020 Final rev
	1.1 Proclamation-FAIR HOUSING MONTH 2020
	1.2 Proclamation-SAAMP 2020 Gonzales City
	2.1a Coversheet for CAFR presentation
	NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS:

	2.1b CAFR
	Part 1
	Part 2
	Part 3

	3.1
	3.1a 2020.03.12 Regular Session Draft Minutes
	3.1b 2020.03.16 Special Session Draft Minutes
	3.1c 2020.03.20 Emergency Session Draft Minutes

	3.2a Council Absences
	3.3a Surplus Property April 2020 rev
	3.4a.CDBG Grant Civil Rights Compliance Cover Sheet rev
	3.5a CDBG Grant Application Cover Sheet rev
	4.1a Museum roof Resolution
	4.2a EDC Funding Resolution 2nd Reading
	4.4a EDC Board Appointment
	4.5a TGS Rate Denial Cover Sheet
	5.1a Ordinance with budget amendments for 19-20 2nd set



